


the minimum square footage of the homes that can be built
within Forrest Glen.

B. EMERALD COVE CORRECT PAVING- Stephanie Moncrief
asks who we mailed out RFP’s to for the paving of Emeral
Cove. Major Moore said he was not involved in that, and
Stephanie would have to speak to the City Clerk to get that
information. Stephanie said she would get with the City Clerk
at a later time to obtain that information.

C. MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER MONTHLY STIPEND
IPAYMENT- Linda Pilgrim says she does not agree because
there are too many other needs of the city, and the money
could be better spent elsewhere. Major Moore offers an
alternative of doing a retirement package instead of a pay
increase. Erica Miles agrees with the increase in the payment.
She says the increase in payment will allow her to do more as
a council member. Stephanie Moncrief also agrees with the
increase.

D. CASE #WGV-23-02- Joe Walter states that Reliant Homes
have 170 acres off Cannon Farm Road that is currently zoned
R1 and it was previously zoned for a subdivision prior the
recession. There were concerns about connecting to the
sewer systems. The applicant has filed a variance for the city
to seek relief from having to connect to the sewer system. The
planning commission sent forth a recommendation for approval
with conditions. The conditions that were suggested: the
applicant must submit all subdivision development plans to the
City of Walnut Grove. This plan should include a transition
zoning buffer and no land disturbance will be allowed within a
25 ft buffer. Applicants must obtain approval from Walton
County for access on Cannon Farm Road and will fund any
improvements required by the county to improve the roadway.
Mayor Moore asked the applicant the smallest lot size and they
answered that 1 acre will be the smallest. The minimum
square footage for the houses is 1800sq feet with the largest
square foot house being 2800ft-3800ft. The amenity package
will include a playground with a single restroom. The
neighborhood will be gated with one entrance.

E. CASE #WGRZ-23-2- Application was filed by Kippy Clark,
Alexander Brock, and William Paul Jones. The location is
located on Walnut Grove Parkway on the SW side of the
roundabout in zone AG. This case was advertised, and the




public hearing was held by the Planning Commission on May
18% 2023. The planning commission felt there was more
discussion needed so they tabled it until their June 15"
meeting. One of the items that was brought up at the Planning
Commission meeting was the traffic that would be generated
by this facility. The Planning Commission requested that the
applicant provides a traffic study and at the June 15" meeting
the traffic study was not available. The traffic study should be
completed by the July 13% 2023 council meeting. Joe Walter
stated that this new development could bring high levels of
traffic that are concerning. The Planning Commission likes the
concept and sent it for the council’s discussion and approval.
The applicants were not present at the work session. The
conditions that were recommended by the Planning
Commission include: The owner and the city should enter into
a development agreement. The development will be designed
and developed with a plan that is approved by Major Moore
and the council. All landscaping, lighting etc. will be approved
by the city. They shall only build what is approved by the
council. The development can vary in the following manner:
Allow drive through windows at areas where drive up lanes are
available. Allow the commercial square footage to exceed
10,000 sq feet. Required parking may be reduced depending
on what the traffic study shows. Any city owned parking may
be reduced following the traffic study. The most recent Master
Plan that was submitied showed all require parking onsite. The
25 ft transition buffer may be reduced down to 12.5 feet with
the construction of a 6ft tall decorative fence along the property
line. If and when the joining properties are zoned to non-
residential district, the buffer will be waved. The PUD
conditions outlined in section 906 shall be enforced. The
development shall extend along the entire property. All exterior
elevations of all buildings shall be submitted to the Mayor and
Coungil for final approval. The developer shall install an
additional lane on Walnut Grove Parkway to accommodate
increased traffic. Sidewalks shall be instalied on the entire
property. Side walks should be a minimum of 6 feet in width.

F. PROPOSED ANMENDMENTS TO THE 2012 ZONING
ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF WALNUT GROVE RELATE
TO ARTICLE IX (TABLE OF USES) TO ALLOW A BED IN
BREAKFAST IN A1- Joe Walter explains that the amendment
would allow the bed and breakfast in AG zoning which is
currently not allowed. Stephanie Moncrief inquired about the
special stimulations in the ordinance and Joe Walter read them
off as follows: Section 901: The lot area shall be no less than
25,000 square feet of floor area within the dwelling. The
operator of the establishment shall reside on site. No guest
shali reside in the bed and breakfast for an excess of 14 days.
Guest rooms cannot be equipped with cooking facilities. These
stipulations are put in place, so it does not become an
extended stay. Stephanie Moncrief asked about the




requirements for serving food and the requirements. Joe
Walter explained that the bed and breakfast must meet certain
criteria for food safety.

G. TEXT AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE 5 OF THE LAND
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE DEFINITION
OF AN “EQUIVALENT RESIDENTIAL UNIT” FROM 250 to
210 TO MATCH CURRENT USAGE- This proposal was heard
by the Planning Commission on May 18", 2023. The intent
was to modify a section of the land ordinance. The amendment
would reduce sewer usage from 250 gallons per day to 210
gallons per day which would free up sewer capacity and make
room for more taps for future expansions. The average flow
per dwelling is 189 gallons per day. This only affects residential
and does not include commercial dwellings. Stephanie
Moncrief requests a comprehensive plan and Major Moore said
he will get the operator and Zoning Administrator to provide
that information at the next meeting.

H. Gas Station at Enclave- This was not originally on the agenda,
but Mr. Coon asked to be heard and the Mayor accepted. The
council needs to approve the exterior elevations for the gas
station building on Highway 138. Mayor Moore asked Joe
Walter if the courtcil ever received an ariel view of the gas
station site. Joe Walter says he will resend the information for
review. Mr. Coon explains he will install sidewalks that extend
to Forrester Cemetery Road for walking traffic that goes all the
way to the Enclave. Mr. Coon says they wilt provide a drawing
and site plans for the couricit members to review. Stephanie
Mongcrief asks where to find the information and drawings of
the gas station. Joe Walter says he will make the information
available the information he has to the council. Erica Miles
inquired about the PUD and The City Clerk will send the PUD
over to Erica Miles. There was discussion by Mr. Coon and the
council members of the overall look of the gas station. Mayor
Moore asked Mr. Coon to get all information needed over to
the counci! as soon as possible for their review so the council
can get it approved. The City attomey explained to the council
that other counties have adopted regulations on architectural
controls and the City of Walnut Grove should consider new
ordinances to have the regulations.

G. WALNUT GROVE MASTER PLAN- Mayor Moore asked the
council if they have the updated Hall Consulting Plan that was
submitted to Planning and Zoning. Stephanie Moncrief inquired
about the rezoning of Kippy Clarke and Paul Jones and how
we would move forward with that without the Master Plan.
Major Moore says there is a comprehensive plan and a




downtown concept design plan. The Master Plan is supposed
to take those two plans and incorporate sewer requirements,
trails and other items and incorporate them all together. Mayor
Moore says the council needs to consider rejecting the
proposal from Hall Consulting and reach out to get more ideas
on what they want to provide. Erica Miles did not agree and
says that instead the council needs to agree on a concept plan
prior to moving forward with a Master Plan. Hall Consulting
was not available at this meeting and Stephanie Moncrief
suggested that they are at a meeting to discuss the Master
Plan. Stephanie is concerned that the concept plan is not what
citizens want but she also believes that Hall Consuiting could
get the city where it needs to go with it's Master Plan. Erica
Miles is very interested in continuing working with Hall
Consulting but also believes we need to finalize our concept.
Mayor Moore says we will set up a retreat with Hall Consulting
to go over all of the information.

VIHi. ADJOURN- Stephanie Moncrief made a motion to adjourn.
Linda Pilgrim seconded. Passed unanimously.




THE CITY OF WALNUT GROVE MINUTES

COUNCIL MEETING
JUNE 8™, 2023 7 PM
Mayor and Council
Elected Officials Present: Staff Present:
Mayor- Mark Moore Deputy Clerk — Sonya Cox

Mayor Pro Tem- Stephanie Moncrief Public Works- Bryan Pilgrim
Council Member- Linda Pilgrim Asst. Attorney- Jay Crawley

Council Member- Erica Miles

. Call to order- Mayor Moore

II. Invocation- Jay Crawley
ll. Pledge of Allegiance- All Participated
IV. Roli Call- Ali Present '

V. Agenda Approval- Mayor Moore made some revisions to the
agenda. First under old business #4 Ethics Ordinance, first reading.
Under new business # 5 DDA appointment Joel Henderson, and # 6
Text Amendments to the zoning ordinance to add B& B to
Agriculture. And swap # 1 under new business to the approval of
the exterior of the PUD Dial Farms gas station. Add # 7 City Clerk
Open Records/ Custodian. Mayor Moore ask for a motion to
approve the amended Agenda, a motion made by Council Member
Miles seconded by Council Member Linda Pilgrim.

V1. Consent Agenda-Motion made to approve the Consent Agenda by
made by Council Member Linda Pilgrim, seconded by Council
Member Erica Miles. Motion Carried.




a. May 11, 2023, Council Meeting Minutes
b. May 16, 2023, GDOT Tree Removal Discussion
c. May 25, 2023, Council Work Session Minutes

2. FINANCIALS
3. INVOCES OF $5000
a. PRECISION PLANNING- ZONING ADMIN. $6520.23

b. SOUTHERN Sanitation- $7068.00

VI COMMITTEE REPORTS-

1. Community Involvement- Linda Pilgrim — This coming Saturday is
our second market of the season. We will have Touch the Truck, we

will have Rainbowsy the Clown making balloon animals, we will be
playing Corn Hole, Walnut Grove Lions club will be selling their hot dog

plates and scoops will be here.

2. DDA REPORT- Erica Miles- We are going to appoint one more
member so that we have a full board, and we have a work session on
Tuesday.

3. Educational involvement Committee- Lots of camps going on
around the city, teachers getting training since school is not in just not a
lot going on.

Vill. PLANNIN AND ZONNG COMMISSION- Chairman Don Cannon is not
feeling well today. He did submit a library board appointment.

So, we will get to that.




IX.

Library Report- Dana Seger- 1 had a wonderful opportunity on
Monday to help at Reading Camp at Walnut Grove Elementary
school. The students, teachers, assistant principals, and Principal
were wonderful to work with. | was even able to give out
information to parents at the carpool drop off to get their children
signed up for our Summer Reading Program. Each class | worked
with from rising 15t graders to rising 4'" graders were able to pick
their favorite book to read together. The students were very excited
to hear about our programs we have daily and weekly at the library.

We have already given away dozens of new books to children who
have read at least 10 books this summer so far. This week’s summer
performer is the Ken Scott Magic Show. The magic show is
tomorrow at 3:30. Next Friday, we have the Jason Clark Reptile
Show and our new performer is the Exotic Animal Encounter
through iron P Homestead, which will be out to visit us in July. As a
reminder we often get over 100 visitors for these performances, so
be sure to plan to arrive early. But we activities planned all
throughout the week, including a Father’s Day Card craft event on
Thursday. June 15t from 3-5.

We also have had amazing attendance for our weekly story and
craft time with Miss Moore and often have between 40-60 patrons
visit us. Also, our puzzle table continues to be a huge hit with
patrons, and they often come completing a new puzzle each week.
At the request of some parents and children, we are starting a
brand-new program called Pokemon Swap so that our young friends
can swap Pokemon cards and meet new friends. We also have a
new Pokemon card pack to be given away the everyone in




attendance will have an opportunity to win that has been graciously
donated by one of the parents. We are also grateful for the support
of our community. 1 would like to remind everyone that we will be
closed Monday June 19t for the Juneteenth holiday.

Public Comments- | am Andrea Gray my office address is 300 E.
Church Street, Monroe GA, tonight | am hearing representing
Reliant Homes and | know | sent you all a letter yesterday | am sure
you have had a chance to read it so | want read you everything in it.
But just in this short time | have for a public comment | did want to
express my client’s frustration with a lack of due process. In
processing its application for a sewer variance under ordinance #
2021-09 for the ordinance all that is required is for the applicant to
file an application and then city council takes a vote. Itis nota
zoning matter and does not require a planning commission. We are
not trying to amend any ordinances; my client was a good sport and
tried to work through the process the best that we could. But it
seems one roadblock after the other keeps being thrown up in front
of us and causing a significant delay which is increasing the cost of
our project. And so, we inform the city to act to due process in this
matter | think not adding it to the agenda tonight is going to make
some decisions we did not want to make we wanted to work with
the city on this. My client had actually met the requirements of the
ordinance which is that we did file an application for a sewer
variance that is zoned an R1 on our 171 acres. We showed in our
application that there is not adequate sewer capacity to serve our
full development , we showed that our project will support a sewer
system, we’ve got two soil surveys from the health department and
a letter demonstrating that we show that our clients will suffer a
hardship if the variance is not granted figuring that there would be
a great delay waiting for the city to upgrade there current sewer




XI.

capacity. And given that a sewer pump station would be required
because of the grade of the property which would make it very
expensive unless we ask for this variance.

Kerry Brown- 1400 Olympic Ct. Oxford, GA - Is there a reason why
you have not addressed the variance. | would like them not to force
them to have to connect to the sewer. If you force them to go onto
the sewer you are going to increase the population density behind
my house. Which is in turn going to increase the traffic on the roads
around here, it is going to increase everything around here and |
don’t think that the City of Walnut Grove is ready for that at this
moment in time.

OLD BUSINESS-

1. Rezoning Application for Forest Glen- Mayor Moore made a
recommendation to remove the Zoning Application off the
agenda for Forest Glen. Council Member Moncrief made a
motion to remove Forest Glen off the agenda, seconded by
Council Member Erica Miles, 2 voted to pass 1 opposed.

2. Emerald Cove Corrective Paving- Mayor Moore is leaving this

under old business until it is resolved. Council Member Moncrief
asks would this be a time to bring up as issue that | see in
Emerald Cove that might affect the city. People are starting to
put in cement, | noticed today they are tired of waiting.

3. Mayor and Council Member Monthly Stipend/Payment- lay
Crawley- It is not the first reading we are just running the add to
be considered before the next council meeting. It has to run
three times before action is taken. So, it will be on the July 13t
meeting, it will run the last two weeks of June and the first week




of July. Council Member Moncrief- Is that being done, | am
sending this to Clerk.

4, Ethic Ordinance- Motion to wave the first reading, Council
Member Moncrief made a motion, seconded by Council
Member Erica Miles, motion carried.

Xl New Business

1.

- Appearance of Exterior Frontage of Dial Farms, motioned
made by Council Member Erica Miles to wave the first reading
seconded by Council Member Linda Pilgrim, motion carried.

Case #WGV-23-02 First Reading- Applicant: Reliant Homes, LLC
Owner bl investment company, llc address: Oak Lane/Cannon
Farm Rd. Parcel # wg10265a00 variance request: variance from
section 501.6 (c} (2) of the Walnut Grove Land Development
Ordinance (connection to public sewer) Council Member Erica
Miles made a motion to wave the first reading and have,the
public hearing on July 13%, seconded by Council Member
Linda Pilgrim, motion carried.

Walnut Grove Master Plan- Hall Consulting - Mayor Moore
recommended that we table the master plan until Hall
Consulting came come out and give us a more robust
presentation of their proposal before a decision is made and |
would like to recommend that we table that proposal until that
happens. Council Member Erica Miles had a question about
that, in Mr. Cannons report he stated that the Master Plan with
Hall Consulting gave the price and the plan or the master plan it
was under the assumption that we already had a downtown in
place. The NEGRC plan we need to do something with that so



XIV.
XV.

I would recommend waiving the 1% reading of the City
Clerks Open Records Officer Mayor Moore Just for
clarification isn’t it already in our city ordinance that the
city clerk is the records keeper. Jay Crawley It is but we are
adding the retention schedule. Council Member Moncrief
made a motion, seconded by Linda Pilgrim, motion
carried.

1. Reports- Public Works- We are working hard to keep the

grass cut; guys and | have got all of the flags up and we will
be taking them down after fourth of July. We built a sign in
the front of the Municipal Building to post agendas and
notices, working on edging the curbing through town and
getting ready for Saturday. \

. City Clerk- The citations where really down the month of

May, we had 1 County Ticket, 4 State Patrols, 5 Pavilion
Rentals, 14 Baseball field rentals and 19 Vendors for the
Park Market on Saturday.

. Mayor- | don’t have much to add, there is the Park Market

on Saturday should be a great event, Lions Club will be
selling hot dogs come out and by some. Other than me
doing the temporary clerk’s duties trying to help Sonya, she
has been a little overwhelmed. And we did find the missing
posting and the tape and all in the bushes so hopefully we
want to have to reschedule and fix the problem.

Town Hall

Council Comments- Erica Miles- | am excited about the Park

Market and 1 am super excited about all the events going on at the
library, Dana is doing a great job and so is Bryan. | was happy to



4.

that Hall Consulting has something to work off of. Mayor Moore
ask for a motion to table this to the next work session, Council
Member Moncrief made a motion to table seconded by Council
Member Erica Miles seconded, motion passed.

Library Board Appointments-

1. Pierre Dupervil

2. Pamela Hobbs

3. William B. Ogleshy
4. Linda Pilgrim

5. Vacancy

6. Sarah Tushshere

Motion Made to approve the appointments for the Library
Board made by Erica Miles, seconded by Linda Pilgrim.

DDA Appointments

a. Mayor Moore, we have a recommendation to the DDA to
appoint Joel Henderson. Motion was made by Council
Member Stephanie Moncrief and seconded by Linda
Pilgrim, motion carried.

Text Amendment to Zoning Ordinance to change to allow a

Bed and Breakfast in a Agriculture- Attorney Jay Crawley.

a. We need to wave the 1% reading because it is set to be on
the July 13t agenda for a public hearing. Council Member
Linda Pilgrim made a motion to waive the first reading,
seconded by Stephanie Moncrief, motion carried.

City Clerk Open Records officer and Custodian-

Jay Crawley This is the first reading to update, or to make
ordinance on how long to keep records based on state law.



see all of the flags up when I got back from vacation, makes me
happy.

Linda Pilgrim- Just come out and enjoy our beautiful park on
Saturday, play some corn hole, eat a hot dog get an ice cream
hangout and play. We always have a good time we are going to be
honoring our first responders we love them, and we appreciate
them and thank them for all they do.

Stephanie Moncrief- Thanks for coming out tonight.

Motion to Adjourn- Motion made by Council Member Moncrief,
seconded by Council Member Erica Miles, motion carried.




City of Walnut Grove

July 2022 - June 2023

Budget vs. Actuals: FY 2023 - FY23 P&L Classes

Accrual Basis Tuesday, July 11, 2023 01:57 PM GMT-04:00

TOTAL
AGTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET ¢% OF BUDGET
Income.
31.1000 Properly Taxes 270,839.61  210,000.00 60,839.61 128.97 %
31.1310 Title Ad Valorem - TAVT 43,179.98 35,000.00 8,179.98 123.37 %
31.1315 Motor Vehicle Tax 2433.1 2,500.00 -66.89 97.32%
31.1340 Intangible Tax 6,812.97 6,000.00 812.97 113.55%
31.1600 Real Estate Transfer Tax 3,125.31 1,250.00 1,875.31 250.02 %
31.1710 Franchise Tax - Electric 71,611.98 60,000.00 11,611.98, 119.35%
31.1730 Franchise Tax - Gas 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.00%
31.1750 Franchise Tax - Cable 8,934.71 9,000.00 -65.29 99.27 %
31.1760 Franchise Tax - Telephone 1,235.55 2,500.00 -1,264.45 49.42 %
31.3100 Local Option Sales Tax 272,813.11  220,000.00 52,813.11 124.01 %
31.4200 Alcohol Excise Tax 78,398.12 80,000.00 -1,601.88 98.00 %
31.6200 Insurance Premium Tax 110,376.86 105,000.00 5,376.86 105.12%
31.8000 Other Taxes 500.00 -500.00
31,9000 Penalties and interest on Delinquent Taxes 232.28 232.28
32.1110 Alcohol Licenses - Beer 1,000.00 1,250.00 -250.00 80.00 %
32.1120 Alcohol Licenses - Wine 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 100.00 %
32.1130 Alcohol Licenses - Liquor 1,700.00 3,400.00 -1,700.00 50.00 %
32.1200 Business License 12,652.50 10,000.00 2,652.50 126.53 %
32.2200 Building Permits and Inspections 12,000.86 50,000.00 -37,999.14 24.00%
32.2990 Other Permits 2,515.00 500.00 2,015.00 503.00 %
32.4000 Late Fess 550.00 550.00
33.1000 Intergovernmental Revenue - Federal 18,985.68 18,985.68
34.1100 Court Services 1.00 1.00
34.7000 Recreation Income 2,960.00 5,000.00 -2,040.00 59.20 %
34.9999 Other Charges 577.19 850.00 -272.81 67.90 %
35.1000 Fines and Forfeitures 42,638.00 35,000.00 7,638.00 121.82%
35.1010 Fines and Forleitures - Other 4,345.00 4,345.00
35.1020 Court Fees - Other 12,397.50 1,500.00 10,897.50 826.50 %
36.1000 Interest Revenue 493.27 500.00 -6.73 98.65 %
37.1000 Gontribution 660.00 660.00
38.9999 Miscellaneous Revenue 3,828.19 1,000.00 2,828.19 382,82 %
39.1100 Transfers from General Fund 172.69 172,69
Tetallneame T $988470.47 $844,750.00  $14372047 = 117.01%
"GROSS PROFIT ~ ~ 77 77T 777 "sopB47ad7 $844,750.80  $143,72047 = 11701%
Expenses
51.1100 Salaries and Wages 179,690.82 196,900.00 -17,209.18 91.26 %
51.2100 Group Insurance 8,796.00 21,000.00 -12,204.00 41.89 %
51,2200 Payroll Taxes - Social Security 16,499.56 11,500.00 4,999,56 143.47 %
51.2210 Payroll Taxes - Medicare 1,350.29 3,150.00 -1,799.71 42.87 %
51.2215 Payroll Taxes - Federal Unemployment 201.55 300.00 -98.45 67.18 %
143













City of Walnut Grove
Budget vs. Actuals: FY 2023 - FY23 P&L Classes

July 2022 - June 2023

1100 - LEGISLATIVE

1500 - ADMINISTRATION

2013 SPLOST

2019 SPLOST

2650 - MUNICIPAL COURT

4200 - PUBLIC WORKS

4300 - WASTEWATER TREATMENT

4500 - SOLID WASTE

6100 - PARKS & RECREATION

6500 - LIBRARY

7450 - CODE ENFORCEMENT

ADMIN (DELETED)

NOT SPECIFIED

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET % OF BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET % OF BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET % OF BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET % OF BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET % OF BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET % OF BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET % OF BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET % OF BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET % OF BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET % OF BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET % OF BUDGET
Income
31.1000 Property Taxes 270,839.61 210,000.00 60,839.61 128.97 % $270,839.61  $210,000.00 $60,839.61 128.97 %
31.1310 Title Ad Valorem - TAVT 33,090.07 35,000.00 -1,909.93 94.54 % $33,090.07 $35,000.00 $-1,909.93 94.54 %
31.1315 Motor Vehicle Tax 1,749.82 2,500.00 -750.18 69.99 % $1,749.82 $2,500.00 $-750.18 69.99 %
31.1340 Intangible Tax 5,775.04 6,000.00 -224.96 96.25 % $5,775.04 $6,000.00 $-224.96 96.25 %
31.1600 Real Estate Transfer Tax 2,898.51 1,250.00 1,648.51 231.88 % $2,898.51 $1,250.00 $1,648.51 231.88 %
31.1710 Franchise Tax - Electric 71,611.98 60,000.00 11,611.98 119.35 % $71,611.98 $60,000.00 $11,611.98 119.35 %
31.1730 Franchise Tax - Gas 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.00 % $0.00 $3,000.00 $-3,000.00 0.00 %
31.1750 Franchise Tax - Cable 8,934.71 9,000.00 -65.29 99.27 % $8,934.71 $9,000.00 $-65.29 99.27 %
31.1760 Franchise Tax - Telephone 1,146.11 2,500.00 -1,353.89 45.84 % $1,146.11 $2,500.00 $-1,353.89 45.84 %
31.3100 Local Option Sales Tax 21,784.62 21,784.62 177,128.47 220,000.00 -42,871.53 80.51 % 25,048.83 25,048.83 $223,961.92  $220,000.00 $3,961.92 101.80 %
31.4200 Alcohol Excise Tax 64,977.02 80,000.00 -15,022.98 81.22 % $64,977.02 $80,000.00 $-15,022.98 81.22 %
31.6200 Insurance Premium Tax 110,376.86  105,000.00 5,376.86 105.12 % $110,376.86  $105,000.00 $5,376.86 105.12 %
31.8000 Other Taxes 500.00 -500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $-500.00 0.00%
31.9000 Penalties and Interest on Delinquent Taxes 232.28 232.28 $232.28 $0.00 $232.28 0.00%
32.1110 Alcohol Licenses - Beer 1,000.00 1,250.00 -250.00 80.00 % $1,000.00 $1,250.00 $ -250.00 80.00 %
32.1120 Alcohol Licenses - Wine 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 100.00 % $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 100.00 %
32.1130 Alcohol Licenses - Liquor 1,700.00 3,400.00 -1,700.00 50.00 % $1,700.00 $3,400.00 $-1,700.00 50.00 %
32.1200 Business License 12,552.50 10,000.00 2,552.50 125.53 % 0.00 0.00 $12,552.50 $10,000.00 $2,552.50 125.53 %
32.2200 Building Permits and Inspections 10,056.62 50,000.00 -39,943.38 20.11 % $10,056.62 $50,000.00 $-39,943.38 20.11 %
32.2990 Other Permits 640.00 500.00 140.00 128.00 % 1,595.00 1,595.00 $2,235.00 $500.00 $1,735.00 447.00 %
32.4000 Late Fees 550.00 550.00 $550.00 $0.00 $550.00 0.00%
33.1000 Intergovernmental Revenue - Federal 18,985.68 18,985.68 $18,985.68 $0.00 $18,985.68 0.00%
33.7100 SPLOST Revenue 254,813.82 254,813.82 $254,813.82 $0.00 $254,813.82 0.00%
34.1100 Court Services 1.00 1.00 $1.00 $0.00 $1.00 0.00%
34.4255 Sewerage Charges 46,907.90 46,907.90 $46,907.90 $0.00 $46,907.90 0.00%
34.7000 Recreation Income 2,380.00 5,000.00 -2,620.00 47.60 % $2,380.00 $5,000.00 $-2,620.00 47.60 %
34.9999 Other Charges 577.19 577.19 850.00 -850.00 0.00 0.00 $577.19 $850.00 $ -272.81 67.90 %
35.1000 Fines and Forfeitures 240.00 240.00 32,753.00 35,000.00 -2,247.00 93.58 % $32,993.00 $35,000.00 $-2,007.00 94.27 %
35.1010 Fines and Forfeitures - Other 4,345.00 4,345.00 $4,345.00 $0.00 $4,345.00 0.00%
35.1020 Court Fees - Other 7,961.50 1,500.00 6,461.50 530.77 % $7,961.50 $1,500.00 $6,461.50 530.77 %
36.1000 Interest Revenue 339.52 339.52 500.00 -500.00 152.77 152.77 139.22 139.22 $631.51 $500.00 $131.51 126.30 %
37.1000 Contribution 660.00 660.00 $660.00 $0.00 $660.00 0.00%
38.9999 Miscellaneous Revenue 2,764.69 2,764.69 500.00 500.00 460.00 1,000.00 -540.00 46.00 % $3,724.69 $1,000.00 $2,724.69 372.47 %
39.1100 Transfers from General Fund 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 0.00%
Total Income $40,770.30 $0.00 $40,770.30 0.00% $780,841.00 $800,900.00 $ -20,059.00 97.50 % $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $279,862.65 $0.00 $279,862.65 0.00% $45,060.50 $37,850.00 $7,210.50 119.05 % $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 0.00% $67,060.67 $0.00 $67,060.67 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $4,435.00 $6,000.00 $-1,565.00 73.92 % $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $139.22 $0.00 $139.22 0.00% $1,218,669.34 $844,750.00 $373,919.34 144.26 %
GROSS PROFIT $40,770.30 $0.00 $40,770.30 0.00% $780,841.00 $800,900.00 $ -20,059.00 97.50 % $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $279,862.65 $0.00 $279,862.65 0.00% $45,060.50 $37,850.00 $7,210.50 119.05 % $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 0.00% $67,060.67 $0.00 $67,060.67 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $4,435.00 $6,000.00 $-1,565.00 73.92 % $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $139.22 $0.00 $139.22 0.00% $1,218,669.34 $844,750.00 $373,919.34 144.26 %
Expenses
51.1100 Salaries and Wages 5,800.00 8,400.00 -2,600.00 69.05 % 64,465.07 82,500.00 -18,034.93 7814 % 614.23 614.23 80,847.45 106,000.00 -25,152.55 76.27 % 0.00 0.00 $151,726.75  $196,900.00 $-45,173.25 77.06 %
51.2100 Group Insurance 8,796.00 8,400.00 396.00 104.71 % 12,600.00 -12,600.00 $8,796.00 $21,000.00 $-12,204.00 41.89 %
51.2200 Payroll Taxes - Social Security 741.82 500.00 241.82 148.36 % 5,949.63 5,000.00 949.63 118.99 % 7,508.48 6,000.00 1,508.48 125.14 % -0.02 -0.02 $14,199.91 $11,500.00 $2,699.91 123.48 %
51.2210 Payroll Taxes - Medicare 150.00 -150.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 $0.00 $3,150.00 $-3,150.00 0.00%
51.2215 Payroll Taxes - Federal Unemployment 100.00 -100.00 201.55 100.00 101.55 201.55 % 100.00 -100.00 $201.55 $300.00 $-98.45 67.18 %
51.2220 Payroll Taxes - State Unemployment 250.00 -250.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 $0.00 $4,250.00 $ -4,250.00 0.00%
52.1100 Court Software 1,472.94 3,000.00 -1,527.06 49.10 % $1,472.94 $3,000.00 $-1,527.06 49.10 %
52.1300 IT Services 8,575.10 7,000.00 1,575.10 122.50 % 3,000.00 -3,000.00 $8,575.10 $10,000.00 $-1,424.90 85.75 %
52.2110 Solid Waste Collection 59,612.40 85,000.00 -25,387.60 70.13 % $59,612.40 $85,000.00 $ -25,387.60 70.13 %
52.2200 Repairs and Maintenance 1,000.00 5,000.00 -4,000.00 20.00 % 6,456.31 10,000.00 -3,543.69 64.56 % 518.75 518.75 30.73 30.73 $8,005.79 $15,000.00 $-6,994.21 53.37 %
52.2210 Repairs and Maintenance - Vehicles 2,351.61 15,000.00 -12,648.39 15.68 % $2,351.61 $15,000.00 $-12,648.39 15.68 %
52.2220 Repairs and Maintenance - Streets, Roads and Bridges 250.38 250.38 83,558.54 83,558.54 1,950.54 10,000.00 -8,049.46 19.51 % 555.00 555.00 $86,314.46 $10,000.00 $76,314.46 863.14 %
52.2240 Professional Services 15,000.00 -15,000.00 500.00 -500.00 $0.00 $15,500.00 $-15,500.00 0.00%
52.2241 Professional Services - Engineering 20,000.00 -20,000.00 25,000.00 -25,000.00 3,180.00 3,180.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 35,000.00 -35,000.00 $3,180.00 $90,000.00 $-86,820.00 3.53 %
52.2241 - Code Enforcement 12,230.00 12,230.00 $12,230.00 $0.00 $12,230.00 0.00%
52.2241 - Engineering Services 22,596.35 22,596.35 1,286.25 1,286.25 13,502.85 13,502.85 $37,385.45 $0.00 $37,385.45 0.00%
52.2241 - Inspections 13,582.50 13,582.50 $13,582.50 $0.00 $13,582.50 0.00%
52.2241 - Storm Water 18,678.75 18,678.75 $18,678.75 $0.00 $18,678.75 0.00%
52.2241 - Zoning Administration 9,268.37 9,268.37 $9,268.37 $0.00 $9,268.37 0.00%
Total 52.2241 Professional Services - Engineering 64,125.97 20,000.00 44,125.97 320.63 % 1,286.25 1,286.25 25,000.00 -25,000.00 16,682.85 16,682.85 10,000.00 -10,000.00 12,230.00 35,000.00 -22,770.00 34.94 % $94,325.07 $90,000.00 $4,325.07 104.81 %
52.2242 Professional Services - Accounting 15,604.98 35,000.00 -19,395.02 44.59 % $15,604.98 $35,000.00 $-19,395.02 44.59 %
52.2243 Professional Services - Legal 32,269.34 40,000.00 -7,730.66 80.67 % 8,014.50 11,000.00 -2,985.50 72.86 % 115.50 115.50 $40,399.34 $51,000.00 $-10,600.66 79.21 %
52.2244 Professional Services - Security 8,680.00 1,500.00 7,180.00 578.67 % 203.87 500.00 -296.13 40.77 % $8,883.87 $2,000.00 $6,883.87 44419 %
52.2250 Facility and Grounds Maintenance 1,600.00 1,000.00 600.00 160.00 % 3,980.05 9,500.00 -5,519.95 41.90 % 2,500.00 -2,500.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 $5,580.05 $15,000.00 $-9,419.95 37.20 %
52.2260 Liability Insurance 25,000.00 -25,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $ -25,000.00 0.00%
52.3000 Cleaning Services 225.00 225.00 $225.00 $0.00 $225.00 0.00%
52.3200 Communications - Wireless Telephone 5,696.45 500.00 5,196.45 1,139.29 % 1,780.20 500.00 1,280.20 356.04 % 290.00 290.00 $7,766.65 $1,000.00 $6,766.65 776.67 %
52.3300 Advertising 2,901.00 2,500.00 401.00 116.04 % $2,901.00 $2,500.00 $401.00 116.04 %
52.3500 Travel 50.00 1,000.00 -950.00 5.00 % 1,160.20 500.00 660.20 232.04 % $1,210.20 $1,500.00 $-289.80 80.68 %
52.3600 Dues and fees 2,000.00 -2,000.00 2,929.03 1,000.00 1,929.03 292.90 % $2,929.03 $3,000.00 $-70.97 97.63 %
52.3610 Bank Charges 453.56 750.00 -296.44 60.47 % 39.47 39.47 259.66 259.66 250.48 250.48 284.88 284.88 $1,288.05 $750.00 $538.05 171.74 %
52.3700 Training and Education 3,794.80 15,500.00 -11,705.20 24.48 % 2,146.08 3,000.00 -853.92 71.54 % 525.00 525.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 $6,465.88 $20,000.00 $-13,534.12 32.33 %
52.3850 Contract Labor 1,575.00 5,000.00 -3,425.00 31.50 % 9,540.00 9,540.00 $11,115.00 $5,000.00 $6,115.00 222.30 %
52.3900 Other Expenses 2,255.97 1,000.00 1,255.97 225.60 % 2,500.00 -2,500.00 682.47 682.47 620.00 620.00 $3,558.44 $3,500.00 $58.44 101.67 %
53.1100 Cleaning Supplies 68.78 450.00 -381.22 15.28 % 3.20 50.00 -46.80 6.40 % $71.98 $500.00 $ -428.02 14.40 %
53.1110 Office Supplies 5,279.13 3,600.00 1,679.13 146.64 % 121.37 121.37 $5,400.50 $3,600.00 $1,800.50 150.01 %
53.1115 Pavilion Rental Expenses 500.00 -500.00 150.00 -150.00 $0.00 $650.00 $ -650.00 0.00%
53.1120 Postage 834.00 1,000.00 -166.00 83.40 % $834.00 $1,000.00 $-166.00 83.40 %
53.1130 General Supplies - Other 901.80 1,500.00 -598.20 60.12 % 826.77 1,000.00 -173.23 82.68 % 9.72 9.72 500.00 -500.00 $1,738.29 $3,000.00 $-1,261.71 57.94 %
53.1140 Community Support/Events 620.22 1,000.00 -379.78 62.02 % 3,777.35 4,000.00 -222.65 94.43 % $4,397.57 $5,000.00 $ -602.43 87.95 %
53.1210 Utilities - Water 2,201.12 500.00 1,701.12 440.22 % 41430 750.00 -335.70 55.24 % 771.08 771.08 250.00 -250.00 $3,386.50 $1,500.00 $1,886.50 225.77 %
53.1220 Utilities - Gas 977.29 1,000.00 -22.71 97.73 % $977.29 $1,000.00 $-22.71 97.73 %
53.1230 Utilities - Electricity 31,720.58 25,000.00 6,720.58 126.88 % 2,770.70 5,000.00 -2,229.30 55.41 % 12,780.56 12,780.56 381.90 5,000.00 -4,618.10 7.64 % $47,653.74 $35,000.00 $12,653.74 136.15 %
53.1240 Utilities - Cable 8,625.63 8,800.00 -174.37 98.02 % 1,500.00 -1,500.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 500.00 -500.00 $8,625.63 $13,300.00 $-4,674.37 64.85 %
53.1270 Gas, Oil, Diesel 6,182.48 10,000.00 -3,817.52 61.82 % $6,182.48 $10,000.00 $-3,817.52 61.82 %
53.1700 Other Supplies 79.59 79.59 1,263.30 1,263.30 443.31 443.31 $1,786.20 $0.00 $1,786.20 0.00%
53.9999 Miscellaneous Expenditures 754.55 1,000.00 -245.45 75.46 % 1,500.00 -1,500.00 13.38 13.38 $767.93 $2,500.00 $-1,732.07 30.72%
54.1400 Capital outlay - Roads Streets and Bridges 13,000.00 -13,000.00 $0.00 $13,000.00 $-13,000.00 0.00%
54.2500 Equipment 500.00 -500.00 65.98 3,000.00 -2,934.02 2.20 % $65.98 $3,500.00 $-3,434.02 1.89 %
54.2600 New Construction 70,000.00 -70,000.00 $0.00 $70,000.00 $-70,000.00 0.00%
57.1000 Other Business Expenses 29.23 500.00 -470.77 5.85 % $29.23 $500.00 $-470.77 5.85%
57.3000 Library 60,000.00 60,000.00 0.00 100.00 % $60,000.00 $60,000.00 $0.00 100.00 %
57.3300 Peace Officer Annuity/Benefit Fund 2,112.89 2,500.00 -387.11 84.52 % $2,112.89 $2,500.00 $-387.11 84.52 %
57.3320 Crime Lab Fees 50.00 -50.00 $0.00 $50.00 $ -50.00 0.00%
57.3340 Drivers Ed/Training Fund 50.00 -50.00 $0.00 $50.00 $ -50.00 0.00%
57.3370 Drug Abuse Treatment and Education 372.38 1,750.00 -1,377.62 21.28 % $372.38 $1,750.00 $-1,377.62 21.28 %
57.3375 County Jail Fund 1,226.12 2,000.00 -773.88 61.31 % $1,226.12 $2,000.00 $-773.88 61.31 %
57.3380 Peace Officer - Prosecutor’s Fund 1,500.00 -1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $-1,500.00 0.00%
57.3385 Local Victim Assist. Fund 963.93 1,500.00 -536.07 64.26 % $963.93 $1,500.00 $ -536.07 64.26 %
57.3390 GA Crime Victims Assist. Program 500.00 -500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $ -500.00 0.00%
57.3391 Peace Officer - Prosecution Indigent Fund 3,500.00 -3,500.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 $ -3,500.00 0.00%
57.3392 Sheriff's Retirement Fund of GA 165.75 500.00 -334.25 33.15% $165.75 $500.00 $-334.25 33.15%
57.3393 GSCCCA Payouts 4,603.92 6,000.00 -1,396.08 76.73 % $4,603.92 $6,000.00 $-1,396.08 76.73 %
57.4000 Walton County Board of Commissioners 6,762.40 6,762.40 $6,762.40 $0.00 $6,762.40 0.00%
58.1000 Debt Service - Principal 13,929.32 13,929.32 13,929.32 24,000.00 -10,070.68 58.04 % 29,946.10 36,000.00 -6,053.90 83.18 % $57,804.74 $60,000.00 $-2,195.26 96.34 %
58.2000 Debt Service - Interest $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
61.1320 Transfers to 2013 SPLOST 3,559.50 3,559.50 $3,559.50 $0.00 $3,559.50 0.00%
Reimbursements 5,426.19 5,426.19 2,350.00 2,350.00 3,134.85 3,134.85 $10,911.04 $0.00 $10,911.04 0.00%
Total Expenses $10,386.62 $27,900.00 $-17,513.38 37.23% $295,140.82 $308,100.00 $-12,959.18 95.79%  $13,968.79 $0.00 $13,968.79 0.00% $85,104.45 $0.00 $85,104.45 0.00% $22,421.66 $36,850.00 $-14,428.34 60.85% $120,422.56 $309,500.00 $-189,077.44 38.91% $58,891.07 $24,000.00 $34,891.07 245.38% $59,612.40 $85,000.00 $ -25,387.60 70.13% $4,914.00 $24,900.00 $-19,986.00 19.73% $89,976.83  $98,000.00 $-8,023.17 91.81% $12,230.00 $35,500.00 $-23,270.00 34.45 % $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $839.86 $0.00 $839.86 0.00%  $773,909.06 $949,750.00 $-175,840.94 81.49 %
NET OPERATING INCOME $30,383.68 $-27,900.00 $58,283.68 -108.90 % $485,700.18 $492,800.00 $-7,099.82 98.56 % $-13,968.79 $0.00 $-13,968.79 0.00% $194,758.20 $0.00 $194,758.20 0.00% $22,638.84 $1,000.00 $21,638.84 2,263.88% $-119,922.56 $ -309,500.00 $189,577.44 38.75% $8,169.60 $ -24,000.00 $32,169.60 -34.04% $-59,612.40 $-85,000.00 $25,387.60 70.13% $-479.00 $-18,900.00 $18,421.00 2.53% $-89,976.83 $-98,000.00 $8,023.17 91.81% $-12,230.00 $-35,500.00 $23,270.00 34.45 % $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $-700.64 $0.00 $-700.64 0.00%  $444,760.28 $-105,000.00 $549,760.28 -423.58 %
Other Income
39.1322 Transfer from Wastewater Fund 3,559.50 3,559.50 $3,559.50 $0.00 $3,559.50 0.00%
Total Other Income $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $3,559.50 $0.00 $3,559.50 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $3,559.50 $0.00 $3,559.50 0.00%
Other Expenses
61.3121 Transfer Out 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 0.00%
Total Other Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%  $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 0.00%
NET OTHER INCOME $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $ -20,000.00 $0.00 $-20,000.00 0.00% $3,559.50 $0.00 $3,559.50 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $-16,440.50 $0.00 $-16,440.50 0.00%
NET INCOME $30,383.68 $-27,900.00 $58,283.68 -108.90 % $465,700.18 $492,800.00 $ -27,099.82 9450 % $-10,409.29 $0.00 $-10,409.29 0.00% $194,758.20 $0.00 $194,758.20 0.00% $22,638.84 $1,000.00 $21,638.84 2,263.88% $-119,922.56 $ -309,500.00 $189,577.44 38.75% $8,169.60 $-24,000.00 $32,169.60 -34.04% $-59,612.40 $-85,000.00 $25,387.60 70.13% $-479.00 $-18,900.00 $18,421.00 253% $-89,976.83 $-98,000.00 $8,023.17 91.81% $-12,230.00 $-35,500.00 $23,270.00 34.45 % $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $-700.64 $0.00 $-700.64 0.00%  $428,319.78 $-105,000.00 $533,319.78 -407.92 %

Accrual Basis Thursday, May 4, 2023 01:35 PM GMT-04:00

11



City of Walnut Grove
2581 Leone Avenue

Loganville, Ga. 30052

-———

e -y

7-1-2023

SOUTHERN SANITATION
P.0. BOX 815

GRAYSON, GA. 30017
770-554-6450

Resldential Monthly Waste Service

June 2023

a—— s~ I e e S g -

| Total Amount Due

Account due by 5-15-2?23
Thank you for your business.

595 ($12.00)

$7140.00

$7140.00




REQUEST FOR SEALED BID
CITY OF WALNUT GROVE
June 2, 2023

Thke City of Walnut Grove (City) is soliciting competitive sealed proposals from qualified
vendors to provide engineering services required for the design of correcting errors
caused by the repaving of the Emerald Cove subdivision within the City Limits of Walnut
Grove, Georgia pursuant to the terms of a Resolution of city council dated May 11, 2023.

Proposals should be typed or submitied in ink and returned in a sealed envelope marked
on the outside with the project identification, bid number and Company Name. Proposals
will be received until July 7, 2023 at 5:00 P.M. local time, at the law firm of Powell &
Edwards, P.C., 10 Lumpkin Street, Lawrenceville, Georgia 30046. Bids may be hand
delivered or mailed to Powell & Edwards. Any bid received after this date and time will
be marked as “late” and disqualified. After the time for receipt of proposals has passed,
each submiited proposal package will be opened by the Mayor and Courcil at the next
regular business meeting, on July 13, 2023. An initial bid tabulation documenting the Bid
opening and listing Bidders will be available upon request on the mext business day
following the date of the proposal opening.

Questions regarding proposals should be directed in writing to Jay Crowley at
jay@powelledwards.com no later than 5:00 PM oz June 30, 2023.

The Proposals shall remain valid for a period of 60 days from bid opening. The City
reserves the right to waive any formality and any technicalities, and to reject any or all
proposals if it is deemed fo be in the best interest of the City to do so.

The general scope of work is to design a cure plan pursuant to the terms of the Resolution
dated May 11, 2023 including the process of curing the defects of paving on Emerald
Drive & Crystal Court, feathering in the paving to the Emerald Cove Clubhouse, placing
pavement markings where appropriate, and cleaning up loose asphalt debris on the
roadways. Additional information for bidders, scope of woik, and how to obtain other
related documents may be obtained through the following contact:

Jay Crowley
Powell & Edwards, PC
PO Box 1350
Lawrenceville, GA 30046
770-962-0100
jay@powelledwards.com

CITY OF WALNUT GROVE, GEORGIA
Mark Moore, Mayor









5/18/23 - PLANNING COMMISSION
RECOMMENDED APPROVAL WITH APPLICANT'S
CONDITIONS - SEE ATTACHED

Variance Report Case #WGV-23-02

Report by: Joe Walter, Zoning Administrator

Date: April 18, 2023
Hearing Date -
Walnut Grove Planning Commission: April 20, 2023 Il\\l/laN I1—|8ea2r:)nz%Date
Walnut Grove City Council: May 11, 2023 (tentative) &Y 20,

General Information

Applicant: | Reliant Homes, LLC

Owner:. 81 Investment Company, LLC

Size: 170.63 acres

Location: Oak Street/Cannon Farm Road
Tax Parcel #WG010265A00

Existing Zoning: R-1

Proposed Development: 92 single family residential uses on individual septic systems

Requested Variance: Relief from the requirements of Section 501.6.B of the Walnut Grove Land
Development Ordinance.

Background

In 2021, the City of Walnut Grove amended the Land Development Ordinance to include several new
sections related to the sewer system (Ordinance #2021-09, Sections 501.6 through 501.9). Section
501.6.A requires that new residential, commercial, industrial or other structures for human habitation
must connect to the sewer system unless they are exempted by one of the criteria in Section 501.6.B. The
City may grant an exemption permit from the public sewer system if two conditions are met:

1. The applicant provides evidence of an Approved Alternative Method for treatment of sewage;
and

2. The structures(s) to be built are located farther away from a sewer main or the sewer plant than
the distances listed in the Table in Section 501.6.B (Table attached as an exhibit).

The subject property was reviewed and approved for a single family subdivision in 2006, but | do want to
point out that any approvals would have been granted under the previous subdivision ordinance and 1997
Zoning Ordinance and that the plans have not been reviewed under the current 2007 Land Development
Ordinance and the 2012 Zoning Ordinance. The applicant cannot complete the design plans for the
property until this variance has been addressed because the sewage disposal method must be accounted
for in the arrangement of streets, lots and utilities. No approvals will be given for any development on
the site until all of the plans have been approved and all fees paid to the various agencies.

Applicant’s Intent

The applicant is representing an LLC that owns a 170.63 acre tract located in Walnut Grove that has
frontage on two public streets (Oak Lane and Cannon Farm Road/Old Hwy 81) and abuts the Walnut Grove
Wastewater Treatment Facility. The subject property was previously submitted and approved for
permitting as the Diamond Creek Subdivision in 2007, but was never developed. The applicant has
approached the City about resubmitting the project for review and approval. In the course of the
discussions, the applicant was made aware of the changes to the City’s Land Development Ordinance
regarding connecting to the sewer system. The Applicant has submitted an application to request relief

2581 LEONE AVE LOGANVILLE, GA 30052
770-787-0046 info@walnutgrovegeorgia.com


605JW
Text Box
New Hearing Date May 18, 2023

605JW
Text Box
5/18/23 - PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED APPROVAL WITH APPLICANT'S CONDITIONS - SEE ATTACHED


Reliant Homes, LLC Sewer Variance
4/18/2023
Page 2

from the requirements of Section 501.6.B. The subject property abuts the Walnut Grove Wastewater
Treatment Facility; and, therefore would be required to connect to the sewer system.

Section 501.6.C provides two avenues to request a variance from the connection requirement; one (1),
subdivide a property into nine or fewer lots of five acres or more, as was the case with the Highland
Properties lots on Forrester Cemetery Road; or two (2), claim a “Substantial Hardship” by presenting clear
and convincing evidence of meeting one of three criteria regarding sewer availability and costs, which will
be outlined in the following section.

Variance Criteria

From Section 501.6 C. Variance From the Sewer Connection Requirement.

This mandatory connection requirement may be waived by official action of the Mayor and City Council
of the City of Walnut Grove by the granting of a variance provided the applicant is able to meet all the
following conditions:

1. When a property is a single lot or a parcel subdivided into nine (9) or fewer lots, a variance may
be granted if the following criteria are followed:

a. The requirement to connect to the city sewer systems creates a substantial hardship on the
applicant;

b. The applicant agrees to build residential homes which have a minimum of 3,000 square feet
of heated floor space;

c. The applicant for a variance agrees to develop the property with lots of at least 5 acres of
land per lot; and

d. The owner demonstrates that an Approved Alternative Method of sanitary sewage disposal
is effective.

2. A variance may also be granted by the Mayor and City Council if the applicant is able to
demonstrate a "Substantial Hardship". To prove a Substantial Hardship, the owner must
demonstrate that the owner's property will support an Approved Alternative Method of sanitary
sewage disposal. In addition to supporting an approved alternate method of sanitary sewage
disposal, the owner must demonstrate by clear and convincing evidence one of the following:

a. The cost of constructing the sanitary sewer connection exceeds the average cost of a
connection by a factor of 10 times, or

b. the City has no available sewer treatment capacity in the Walnut Grove sewer system,

c. or no available sewer taps which have not been pledged to binding reserve capacity
agreements with other third parties.

If no sewer taps are available, no variance shall be granted to any applicant until the applicant has
exercised all rights in any reserve sewer capacity or reserve sewer tap agreements with the City of
Walnut Grove, Georgia.

Analysis of Variance Request

The applicant has submitted evidence in the attached application to demonstrate that they are of the
opinion that they meet one or more of the criteria listed in the “Substantial Hardship” category. The
applicant has submitted information from the Walton County Environmental Health Department



Reliant Homes, LLC Sewer Variance
4/18/2023
Page 3

indicating that the Approved Alternative Method of sanitary sewage disposal has been approved on the
subject property in the past AND that the City does not have available sewer capacity (Criteria #2b from
above). The letter from Walton County EHD is dated December 2, 2005 gave preliminary approval for the
development with a number of lots needing additional study. However, this is typical for this type of
development. There are several sets of correspondence presented between the applicant and the City
regarding sewer capacity and the timing of the City’s expansion of the system. In the application package,
the applicant also included some additional information about budgeting and scheduling regarding the
sewer system expansion.

The applicant has also made the case that to wait until the city has developed sufficient capacity would
cause a significant delay in the development cycle, with a corresponding increase in the costs. The more
expensive the lot development cost, the more expense the final product will be for future buyers. The
applicant has also indicated that it would be in the City’s best interest to save the sewer capacity for
commercial development in the town center areas. The applicant’s letter of intent contains more detail
about the costs of development and waiting to develop.

Finally, the applicant discussed the practical difficulties of installing sewer on the property due to a pump
station and force main being need to lift the sewage to the City’s treatment facility, combined with the
likelihood of rock in the area making sewage line installation more difficult (and more expensive). The
layout of the property, with a creek bisecting the land does make it impossible to gravity flow sewage to
the city’s pump station. Although not mentioned in the application, sewered lots are usually much smaller
than 40,000 square feet in size. To make the cost of development work with sewer, the property would
have to be rezoned to a zoning district that would permit much smaller lot sizes and a higher density,
which would introduce many more lots into the area and would have a significant impact on the adjacent
roadways, school system, utilities, etc.

Conclusion

The applicant has stated their intent to develop the subject property into a residential subdivision with
approximately 92 lots. The plans were previously approved in 2006 with individual septic tanks to treat
sewage. Any approvals given in 2006/2007 are null and void and any development on this property would
have to be reviewed and approved under the current City ordinances. One of those new ordinances
indicates that development must connect to their sewage system if certain conditions exist and the
subject property abuts the wastewater treatment facility, which triggers the connection requirement. The
applicant did not elaborate on why they did not pursue obtaining a permit prior to the adoption of the
new sewage connection requirements.

The City is in the process of expanding the sewer system and knows that more capacity is needed due to
the anticipated demand in the Town Center area. There are plans being developed to expand beyond 0.1
MGD to 0.5 MGD, but time is needed to obtain permits and secure funding needed to construct the
improvements. The applicant has submitted compelling information that a “Substantial Hardship” does
exist, given the location of the property being below the elevation of the treatment facility and the length
of time needed to wait upon sewer capacity.

Any variance approved on the subject property should include these conditions (Note - when Applicant is
used, the term shall mean the current applicant or any successors in title):

1. Applicant must submit all required subdivision development plans to the City of Walnut Grove
and other agencies for approval within one (1) year of the date of approval of the variance.



Reliant Homes, LLC Sewer Variance
4/18/2023
Page 4

2. Applicant’s plans should include a transitional zoning buffer of 25 feet between any lots that abut
the Walnut Grove Wastewater Treatment Facility. No land disturbance will be allowed in the 25
foot buffer except for perpendicular utility crossings as needed.

3. Any amenity area proposed for the subdivision must be built with the first phase of the
development, if multiple phases are proposed.

4. Applicant must obtain approval from Walton County for access onto Cannon Farm Road/Old 81
and will fund any improvements required by the County to improve the roadway along the
property frontage and to the intersection of Youth Jersey Road and/or Hwy 81.

5. Applicant shall dedicate a 25’ wide utility easement to extend from the common property line
with the Walnut Grove Wastewater Treatment Facility to the nearest public street within the
development for future use. The location of the easement will be decided at the time of the
submission of subdivision development (preliminary plans).

6. The submitted plans will include a 20’ wide no access easement along all lots that abut Oak Lane.

7. Subdivision development plans must show compliance with the requirements of the Cornish
Creek Watershed Protection Overlay District WP-1.

Aerial View of the Site

Walnut Grove
Wastewater
Treatment Facility




Reliant Homes, LLC Sewer Variance

4/18/2023
Page 5

Excerpt from the Zoning Map




CONDITIONS ACCEPTABLE TO
APPLICANT

- Applicant agrees to Conditions 1,2, 3, 6,and 7

* Applicant requests the following updates to Conditions 4 and 5

- Condition 4: clarify that the Applicant will fund, if necessary, the County ROW improvements (not
GDOT improvements)

- Condition 5: Applicant would like further clarification on the purpose of the 25-foot sewer
easement and the proposed location. Applicant is not opposed to granting an easement in a
mutually agreeable location.

o
o2
% O
D E
= E
wm
o8
S
==
ANnS
[a'ed
a Q
VI
m
[a e
0o
ol
mR
=9
o ©
O w
[WH T
x oum

)
<
%
Z
Q
E
&
Z
O
O
AN
<
™
o
>
=
Bag
L
2
O



605JW
Text Box
CASE #WGV-23-02 CONDITIONS AS RECOMMENDED BY PLANNING COMMISSION - SEE CASE REPORT FOR STAFF CONDITIONS.


5/18/23 - PLANNING COMMISSION
RECOMMENDED APPROVAL AS
PRESENTED

April 17, 2023

Walnut Grove Planning Commission
c/o Mr. Don Cannon, Chairman
2581 Leone Avenue

Walnut Grove, Ga 30052

Re:  Proposed Amendments to the 2012 Zoning Ordinance for the City of Walnut Grove
related to Article IX (Table of Uses)

Commission Members:

At the last Planning Commission meeting, one of the action items for me to prepare was a text
amendment to the Zoning Ordinance that addressed the Bed and Breakfast Use and the allowable
zoning districts. The City has received a Business License application for a bed and breakfast use
for a property in the AG district. Currently, Bed and Breakfast Uses are not permitted in the AG
zoning district per Article IX (Table of Permitted and Conditional Uses). | have included a snippet
from the Table of Permitted and Conditional Uses below:

Based upon the discussion at the previous meeting, and based upon a recent meeting with
Chairman Cannon and Mayor Moore, | am presenting several changes to Article IX for your
consideration:

2581 LEONE AVE LOGANVILLE, GA 30052
770-787-0046 info@walnutgrovegeorgia.com


605JW
Text Box
5/18/23 - PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED APPROVAL AS PRESENTED


Walnut Grove Planning Commission
April 17, 2023
Page 2

Note: Bold, highlighted text indicates proposed additions to the text. Strikethrough-text
indicates proposed text to be deleted from the Ordinance.

1. Changes to the Commercial and Retail Uses portion of the Table of Permitted and Conditional
Uses relating to Bed and Breakfast Inns:

&L
=3
vses gIBR|R| 8| 2| 2| 8 =
\
7y
Commercial and Retail Uses
Bed and Breakfast Inn Y [P ] | lc]clc| P |

This proposed change would permit Bed and Breakfast Inns as a use by right in the AG district if
the use/parcel can meet the supplemental standards. The change would also remove Bed and
Breakfast Inns as a Conditional Use from the R3 district, with the reasoning that the only R-3
zoned parcels in the City would not meet the supplemental.

2. Several Housekeeping changes to correct the terminology in Article IX relating to Conditional
Uses (i.e., the term Special Use is used incorrectly; it should be Conditional Use).

Wherever the term “Spectal™ is listed in relation to a use required and additional zoning review,
the term shall be changed to “Conditional” to more accurately reflect the correct terms.

These amendments will be discussed in a public hearing setting and formally recommended to the
City Council at your May 18, 2023 meeting. Please let me know if you have any questions.
Sincerely,

Joe Walter
Zoning Administrator



5/18/23 - PLANNING COMMISSION
RECOMMENDED APPROVAL AS
PRESENTED

April 17, 2023

Walnut Grove Planning Commission
c/o Mr. Don Cannon, Chairman
2581 Leone Avenue

Walnut Grove, Ga 30052

Re:  Proposed Amendments to the 2007 Comprehensive Land Development Ordinance for
the City of Walnut Grove related to Section 501.8 (Sewer Use Ordinance).

Chairman Cannon and Commission Members:

The Mayor has requested that the City Council consider an amendment to Section 501.8 (Sewer
Use Ordinance) Section | Definitions — Definition (T) “Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU),”
contained in the Land Development Ordinance for the City of Walnut Grove. The proposed
amendment is listed below:

Note: Bold, highlighted text indicates proposed additions to the text. Strikethrough-text
indicates proposed text to be deleted from the Ordinance.

(T) “Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU)” shall mean a volume of water equal to the average daily
usage of a typical single family residence of 256 210 gallons.

The request to lower the ERU calculation would free up additional residential sewer connections
and allow additional customers to be connected to the City’s system. The proposed ERU of 210
gallons (per day) is greater than the average residential daily flow at the City’s wastewater
treatment facility. More information will be provided ahead of the meeting regarding the reasoning
behind the request and other technical data.

This amendment will be discussed in a public hearing setting and formally recommended to the
City Council at your May 18, 2023 meeting. Please let me know if you have any questions.
Sincerely,

Joe Walter
Zoning Administrator

2581 LEONE AVE LOGANVILLE, GA 30052
770-787-0046 info@walnutgrovegeorgia.com


605JW
Text Box
5/18/23 - PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED APPROVAL AS PRESENTED


5/18/23 - PLANNING COMMISSION
RECOMMENDED APPROVAL WITH
UPDATED RENDERING SHOWING
MORE GLASS.

April 20, 2023

Walnut Grove Planning Commission
1121 Park Street
Loganville GA 30052

Re:  Architectural Elevation of Commercial Exterior — Condition #7 of RZ-18-03

Members:

The attached information from Sawtooth Construction has been submitted for Planning
Commission and Council review to satisfy Condition #7 of #RZ-18-03 (Enclave PUD Commercial
Acreage).

Sincerely,

Joe Walter
Zoning Administrator

Attachments: Information from Sawtooth Construction
#RZ-18-03 Rezoning Conditions

2581 LEONE AVE LOGANVILLE, GA 30052
770-787-0046 info@walnutgrovegeorgia.com


605JW
Text Box
5/18/23 - PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED APPROVAL WITH UPDATED RENDERING SHOWING MORE GLASS.


EXTERIOR ELEVATION OF WALNUT GROVE GAS
STATION - MAYOR AND COUNCIL APPROVAL NEEDED
TO SATISFY CONDITION #7 OF ZONING #RZ-18-03



605JW
Text Box
EXTERIOR ELEVATION OF WALNUT GROVE GAS STATION - MAYOR AND COUNCIL APPROVAL NEEDED TO SATISFY CONDITION #7 OF ZONING #RZ-18-03































































































s ——
Portl, Toun of porl WP
eora eparmentof Nt Resources e et ke Bacstesr PCP)

unm evor wmma wocn
crrses, Al Fam

roperyOwers Asociaton Watealt ke Burton WAF)
prce s of i

Orane ke Resorts Agps uiainfesort 2)WPCh)
atr, iy of it WP
Stondrd sad ndsicaCompany ey el
et e . g oy
iy o o
oyt
Leomonmes e sone

o
T astonsr o L€ ot yore

Paing Courty Water Syt Fchar e

Recoered aterdls €0, UC

e S n. hlchee iver )
e s . it Qo

v Centes, UC (g Tl Pz
patiiavion

nm m el
psat

I mm
I

oo oy e o

il oo, (ukes Mie)

Resty MU vt

o
Peschres iy Wtar & Sower Athorty Rockway WiE- )
rardoary
et Wt . e

e

vttt o ks oo WP
mm,wmamum i s
o ool on

Vi Contneton Mataal, LLC Stockbdg
9 "

Comels, iy of (Comela T
North eorga Chuthaf Godgaey Revet CatarWicP)
erosa rmancene

e otoicn R
jrspasming

e A ————
el Cyal fencs WhcP1

Vi Mt o, L rsgon cuam)

Oconce ounty Baardof Commasoners ockyBanch WrcP)

e e
Tron m.m o
recorey s ey =-mo«wm

Tk aanconi 10 s o
e,y of oy Serrons w1l

SillatrCoes CommuntyAsacton U flhater Coves WocP)

e
Washegto, it of S Sross W)
o ool oo
e

sE——
s e i o
Tonfam e (©thor
Vot i G 354
T

of tomond
mmu Wmm wmu e porac e

o

2
EH

i G i

e ——
3ty Woods Propartes, L€ Wi e Oevcloprent Wocr)
e

—
P st 1 g ety

rcsn e o W

Sonon Giyol Gatonwrch)
T —
[ ———

Bty CountyBaardof Eucston WaynesieEementan Schol WRCP)
el ryal legCroek WPCP)

ol sy U

RonchOurers socation . Aanch e Mowntas Whce]

el Cryof

Plrs e Copra

uuuenmwa/(wnuwvcﬂ

Forsyh Cou Fower WAF B s rek WAF)

Niaiaerss . bosire

DL teebsoms

Hogarsle,Cryof agarle WP

mmme,mvowvx i)

Fisi—
m.a.mm

for, o autorswocrl
-
Vil Fam e
Covla Hodgs Cororatonuncton iy Facht
Sounermeotc soluons, 1C
orantomens L e o e )
The Wt Wter GoupLC ke S

ren)
gy ool o ot )
oo e y—

o e

e ——
o i

ity

Se e e Comany . B kT
GamaFrank . el

sxavnumm,nunamuxanva\ml»kme-wmgwhdwmwxn
o sewerge Adhorty (dway Rosd WIF)
e Coy et o ot Rl il 01 42
Vi Materals Compary, U (3rn Q)

e il . 4 O]

oo, ol

Pedmont Watr Company (Reyods Paraton Wil

e s e st o L)
R Camp Coleman wrce

e ot . e )

iy o o

e b e o o s WP

S

s s amy
Waco Gryof ac
Cnctenal neses mmnmmmmmnmx
sty o
o e
Ui
\anaaam,num\anummwmmmwxn
o
[l e ————
oy Couny Fuon Road WIF)
e sodcananon

Cowea wmwn.mwmmmm(» Lseswirch)
Vi Matarls Compary, 1€ Lt prngs Q)

Rockislo County Water Resures (510 Sodls WFCP)

At Minrs tematond, L ew Ansterda one)

Bamesile
Terle
Redevie

Watknete
Watknevte
eDonouen
Deenstep
catfn
Ganeevie

orfce_or_oRian e s peaT_carecony s T pemar_susveE
Cratboocnee s
Opechee Whnconl
SoutbstDstit-Absy i it s b | o Aolstansysm Mo
con Comestc epage Mincoal
e sl
ocmse Mincoal
Sttt Dt Aty it Corart o Comer st G S AF 010108 0l
ococtonee s
ocon reveament e
Nortese Dt Apers - Crtahoscnee NS il et st
Nortess Dt Atere s oot Coed 581 G| S50 4106, gl
sl e
pe— ol
Y —— Corart o Conert . s s e Fcat 0Tl
opesres scon
Nortess Dt Aers Oconee Corari o Cnert st G Snd Gl ndural
NorthessDstrctAters Oconee Corart e Coner . W e Fcat NGl
Sttt Dt Ay it St s Pt ard Alstonsytn W
oo s
Northess Dt Aers  Oconee ek Gonen 14560 3010000, It
Nt At Ocon Mo avanren ]
Mountan irct_Atta i IS oo L s Mol
Temnesce reventment il
ratsboscnee o
ssvaman reventmer o
Nortess Dt Aers Oconee Goersorscovted . Gt sondsod v gl
Mountan Ditrkt_Atats  Ocrulse Corert e Coner a4, W s rescnnFcat nsital
NortessDetict - Aars Ocrl I st i P | o At s Mincoal
s ment il
[ —— Corart o Conert it G S AE 001010 0l
ssvanan 7 ol
sils il
e sl
Nortess Dt Aters | Oconee NS il e NFOES ot
p— i
Northese Dt Aere Oconee oot Cowted . G 4B 4106, ]
ocome sl
oo s
Sevaman sl
Sovanon st
ocmee sl
Crataboccnee enisusace Mincoal
ocmze sl
oo sl
o ot
ennesee e
Mountan Ditrct_tants U Oumse Corert e Coner o, Wi s Pt sl
Northese Dt Aers - Saavan St s Pt o MlestanSyr W
sevamen reveament il
WountanDitret_Atants  Talapooss ot s Pt ard Mlestonsytm W
cratarooce Mncoal
ocmulee sl
Cotboocne ol
Wountan et Atnts oSt s Pt o Aglstonsytm W
oo il
NorthesstOntrcr- ers Oxonee St s P s Rlstansyter W
oo il
preventment ot
pe— o
ocmulee e
ssvaman ioes il
ra—
e reveatment il
e sl
Sotwest Dt Abany Swarase o v S o .
Nortess Dt Aters v Corart o Cmerfac. Gl St conl
resce oy
Conta Dt v [ e — o
poocres ot
Sevaman ol
e wroes Munkiat
e s
pe— enisusace o
e preveatment il
o
ssvnah ot sl
Nortese Dt Aers Oconee oo Coed 381 | A3 50 40106 gl
Nountan Dtttz Crtahoschee Corart o Cvert st G Supetace Mincoal
se il
cnee ot il
Nortess Dt Aers  Cratahoschee Gorart o v et G Subsatace Mncoal
ocmgee Mincoal
Coom wrots i
Y ——— Gorarl o vt 8. W3 e Fcat 0TSl
Sevanan 0 ot
Sottwest Dt Abany | Ol P R
Sevaman sl
Coaaroocne ieves
P o
Opectee Mol
e eenisistace Mincoal
[T NS il e WFOES Muncist
e — sl
Crataroccres Mincoal
saran el astcies Mincoal
Nortess Dt Atere e [ — i
a— Mincoal
" sl
saln pevament i
p— wroes e
Sevaman roes e
ratapoocree o il
Opecree e ncoal
e sl
Nortess Dt Aers Oconee NS sl e NFOES Munca!
rtan et At Cratipooches Gorart o vt . s 3 e Fcar 0ol
Sottwest Dt Abany  Ochockanse Corert e Comer o, Wi s e Pt sl
Cratarooch ot
Ut —— Corart o vt Dot Setsge Mincoal
Nortess Dt Atars Ogescres Corert e Coner o, Wi s e Pt ndusiol
Crataboocnee Mincoal
T e St s Pt o Alstansytm W
Consta Dt opeen St s Pt ard Aglstansytm W
e sl
Nortess Dt Apere S st i P | o Aplaton Syt ndsral
Sottwest Ot -Abany Ochckanse Corart o Conert st i s Oosetrs (4 0GrS1
oo sl
NorthessDatrct - Aers S Corart e v . G A AR 0010 0l
Tatapooss preveatment o
coom et
Sttt Dt -Abany S oSt s Pt ard Alestansytm W
Jrer o ——— St s Pt o AlestonSyt W
Cratoocnes il
. ol
perh ol
Nortess Dt Aers Oconee St s Pt ard Alstansytm W
NorthessDstctAtars Ocrulse Corart o Cmernt st G Subeatace Mincoal
Mountan itrt_Atats  Crtaboccnee St s Pt o Mlstonsyt W
rtinoocres ol
Crtarooce Mncoal
Sovaman Mincoal
P Mincoal
v reveatment il
v preveatment o
o s
Talapoosa Mincoal
Atamana il
Northese Dt Apere Unkroun Corar o vt Dot St Mincoal
o peveatment il
Sevaman el et Mincoal
NortessDstt-Aars oo Gorart e Cover st G Sbertace Mincoal
Sottwest Dt Abany Suwarase Corart e Coner . G S AF 001010 0l
ocmol ol
P wrots il
ocmlee reventment o
taboocnes o
Mountan itrct_atats  Ocrulse Corert o Coneret o, M s i< Pt sl
Mountan Drct Atz Crtahocchee Corart e v . s s e st NGl
Mountan itrct_tants i I ot s oo
Osectee el
Sttt Dt Abany Ochockanse Corert o Conere o4, M 2 i< Pt 0ol
MountanDitrct_Atants el Corart e v . s s e st NGl
[ Mncoal
Mourtan Detrt_ Atz Crtahoschee St s P o Alestonsyt W
Mountan et Atz Crtaboscnee Corart o Coner . Wi 2 e Fcat 0Tl
Temnesee o Mincoal
e e Minconl
oo T — Mhncoal
Souttwest Ot Abany  Ochockonee Corort e Comer o, W s o Fcati nGusiol

MuncpalorWater Ot neffct

et néfict
PrateyOuneaFacity  nfict
PrateyOunedrachty  nfiect
Micpalor WaterOstiet neffct
nefict

" ettt
St st s, Infict
Pty Ounearacity it
ety Ounedracty  neffet
Pty OwnedFoctty el
soimafecdngOperaton nefect
St ncttora nefict
o nefict
g nefict
vty OunedFacity  Inefet
ity owned ac neftct

watly neftct
cdrgopesion  Inefict
Corporaton néftct
Pt OunedFacity it
iy Goverment it
Pty OunndFachty  nfict
corsorston nefict
Pt OunedFacity  nfiect
PrateyOunndbachty  ncfiect
nefict

nefict

Pty Ounedfacity  nfiet
i fecdngOperaton nefect
won nefict
Cooraton ettt
Cosorston nefict
ey nctter
Pty Ounedfacity  nfiet
il e Operation It
oo nefict
Pty Ounndfacity  nfict
vty Owncd s it
Micpalor WaterOstiet  nffct
ity Owned Fac it
Pty OwnedFocity el
soimafecdngOperaton nefect
Pty Ounnabachty it
- nefict
Mgy neffct
Ramafdreomaton et
irgoperaton et
Hoivouniren e
Corsorston nefict
Mucay neffct
Pt Ounedfacity it
et néfict
MicpalorWater Ot neffct
icaty it
Pty Ounegfacity  nfict

MuicpalorWaterOstiet  neffct
Micpalor WaterOstiet neffct

nefict
Muncpalor WaterOstict nffct
ol FesangOperaton. nfect
P ourei oy ncle
corsoston néfict
Muncpalor WaterOstiet neffct
Pty OuneaFacity  nfict
Micpalor WaterOstiet  nffct
Pty OuneaFacity it
comnen it
Ao recdngOperaton nefect
Hoivounirecn e
raton it
Pty Ounedfacity it
Pty Ounndbachty  nfiect
corsorston néfict
Muicaty nefie
Moncpaity ncttcr
soimarecdngOperaton nefe
Pty Ownnabackty it
Pty Ounndbachty it
" it
néfict

il e Operaton It
Mo it
atdlyOuned ety Inefec
watdy O iy Inefec
Micpaty nefict
vty Ouredsaciy  Inefect
Pt Ounedfachty it
Pty Ounedbachty it
nétict

Pt Ownedfacity el
nefict

Mucpaly neftct
Pt Ownedfacity el
ol nefict

iy neftct
et Dt ettt
Micpaly neftect
watdlyOuned ety inlfec
Sttt B, Inffct
Micpaly neftct
vty Owned it
Micpalor WaterOstiet  neffct
ety Owned s it
ey Ouned iy Inefec
Micpaly neftect
Micpaly neftct
won it
otyomesran et
i nefie
Mo v i el
it

nefict

Pty Ounndfacity  nfict
Pty Ounndfachty  nfict
corsorston nefict
Pt Ounedfacity it
Pt Ounedfachty it
Mgy it
soimarecdngOperaton nefect
Pty Ounngrachty it
rsoraton nefict
Mcpalor WaterOstiet nffct
Corsorston it
i recdngOperaton nefect
sorton ettt
ot v nefect
[ —
Pty Ownedrachty it
Maplorwsrose e
ety Own neffa
oy oureec et
Micpalor WaterOstiet neffct
atdlyOuncdficity I
atdyOuned ey Inefec
Micpaly neftct
Pt Ounedfacity it
Mgy neffct
Pty Ownndfacity  nfin
[ —
Pty Ouneafacity it
Pty Ounndfachty  nfiet
corsorston nefict
Muncpalor WaterOstiet nffct
vty Owned nefict
Micpaly neftct
watdlyOuned ey Inefect
Pty Ounedrachty  ncfiet
oy Goverment neftct
Pty OunndFacity it
soimafecdngOperaton nefect
Msicaly nefict
oy Goverment it
ety OwnedFacity  neffect
rporton ettt
PrateyOunndfacity  nfict
Itk Ouary. it
Pt OwnedFoctty el
Micpalor WaterOstiet neffct
Muncpaly néfter
Pty Ounedfacity it
nefict

nefict

Pt Ounedfacity it
iy nefict
i nefict

" it
Pty Ownedfocity el

Micpalor WaterOstict neffct

et or

enratedon 21212023

naetors

exomanon o

sic_cone st

Facuy_onn PERIT_ACTION_COMPONENTS

oot i s Tttt

o et oo . i oo e

414 R INGTON AOARRED i Procesng e
wcanrien

oo
et

o 6 ot

) e Opsrstans NPDES, Gorea LAS A7 30010 1000

et s, Lt A